

Standards Committee

Monday November 23 2009 7.00 pm Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB

Membership

Mark Roelofsen (Chair)
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice-Chair)
Councillor James Barber
Councillor Paul Bates
Councillor Michelle Holford
Councillor David Hubber
Councillor Mackie Sheik
Councillor Robert Smeath

Reserves

Councillor Mark Glover Councillor Peter John Councillor Linda Manchester Councillor Chris Page Councillor Caroline Pidgeon Councillor Lewis Robinson

Independent Members

Peter Bibby, Wendy Golding, Christopher Gurney and Bola Ogun

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.

Babysitting/Carers allowances

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council. Please collect a claim form at the meeting.

Access

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible. Further details on building access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council's web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.

Contact

Andrew Weir on 020 7525 4326 or email: andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk Webpage: http://www.southwark.gov.uk

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting

Annie Shepperd

Chief Executive

Date: November 13 2009





Standards Committee

Monday November 23 2009 7.00 pm Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS

A representative of each political group will confirm the voting members of the committee. The quorum requires at least one independent member to be present.

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The access to information procedure rules permit an item of business to be added to an agenda within five clear days of the meeting by reason of special circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes.

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

All members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting (or as soon as possible thereafter), any interest(s) and dispensation (if any) in respect of any item or issue to be considered at this meeting, in accordance with committee and community council procedure rule 1.6.

5. AMENDMENT TO THE LOCAL FILTER PROCEDURE RULES

1 - 16

To note and agree the recommended changes to the local filter procedure rules.

ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports revealing exempt information:

"That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to Information Procedure rules of the Constitution."

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

6. CONSIDERATION HEARING FOR COMPLAINT REFERENCE LF005-09

To consider the report of the investigating officer in relation to complaint reference LF005-09.

ANY OTHER CLOSED BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date: November 13 2009

Agenda Item 5

Item No.	Classif	ication:	Date:	Meeting Name:
5.	Open		November 23 2009	Standards Committee
Report title:			Amendment to the Local Filter Procedure Rules	
Ward(s)	or	groups	All	
affected:				
From:			Strategic Director of Communities, Law & Governance	
			,	

RECOMMENDATION

- 1. That the standards committee notes the report.
- 2. That the standards committee agrees to amend the local filter procedure rules as shown in appendix A.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

- 3. The local filter procedure rules have been operation since May 2008.
- 4. Under the current rules, when the investigating officer does not consider that there has been a breach of the code the report will be referred to the standards committee to make a decision as to whether it agrees with the investigating officer's findings.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

- 5. However, until now, no complaint has proceeded to the consideration stage. In undertaking the first, officers consider that it would have been more practical if the rules involving consideration of the investigating officer's report had allowed for a sub-committee to consider these reports rather than requiring them to be taken to the full standards committee.
- 6. Officers therefore propose that the rules be amended to allow these considerations to be dealt with by sub-committees. The changes also make clear that the consideration sub-committees would generally also be the hearing sub-committee if one is required, thus enabling the sub-committee to deal with issues relating to the conduct of the hearing.
- 7. At the same time officers have made several other minor amendments. Attached to this report at appendix A are the local filter procedure rules including the recommended amendments.
- 8. The Guidance from Standards for England allows standards committees to make amendments to its procedure for dealing with local assessments of complaints, so long as the rules are not changed during the consideration of a matter.
- 9. These amendments would be applicable to any new complaint received by the standards committee.

Legal implications

10. The legal implications have been dealt with in the body of the report.

Community Impact Statement

11. Good governance is very important in aiding the decision-making process and helping to boost public confidence in the council. The details set out in this report will provide members of the community with information on how alleged breaches of the code will be dealt with by the standards committee.

Resource Implications

12. Any resource implications will be contained within existing budgets. Such changes will reduce the need for full committee meetings.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Held At	Contact
PO Box 64529,	Lesley John 020-7525-7228
2 F	2nd floor,

APPENDICES

No.	Item
Α	Revised local filter procedure rules

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer	Deborah Collins,	Strategic Director of C	Communities, Law and				
	Governance	-					
Report Author	Norman Coombe, Principal Lawyer, Governance Team						
Version	Final						
Dated	November 11 2009						
Key Decision?	No						
CONSULTATION	WITH OTHER	OFFICERS / DIRE	CTORATES /				
EXECUTIVE MEMBER							
Officer Title		Comments Sought	Comments included				
Strategic Director of	of Communities, Law	Yes	Yes				
and Governance							
Finance Director		No	No				
Executive Member	r	N/A	N/A				
Date final report s	ent to Constitution	al Team	November 11 2009				

LOCAL FILTER PROCEDURE

General rules

Quorum

- The quorum for the assessment, review and hearing sub-committees will be an independent member and two other members from different political parties. The meeting will be chaired by the independent member. All members of the subcommittees will be members of the standards committee and must have completed the relevant training.
- 2. Member allocation will be determined by the constitutional team drawn from the pool according to availability based on an allocation procedure approved by the standards committee.

Declaration of interest

3. The provisions of the Council's Code of Conduct apply and members will need to declare any personal and prejudicial interest in respect of the complaint at any standard committee meetings and hearings. When members' availability is sought they will be provided with the name of the complainant and subject member and other relevant information to determine whether there are any prejudicial interests. A reserve system will be used as backup.

Voting

4. Each sub-committee member will have one vote, and all matters/issues will be decided by a simple majority of votes cast with no casting vote for the chair. Abstentions will not be permitted.

Procedure for the Initial assessment

- 5. Complaints should be in writing and addressed to <u>Standards</u> Committee of the Council. However, an oral complaint will be accepted where the complainant is unable to write due to a physical or mental disability or there is a language barrier. Where an oral complaint is received it will be transcribed and read back to the complainant over the phone and sent to them for their approval. Anonymous complaints will only be referred for assessment if they include documentary evidence or photographic evidence indicating an exceptionally serious or significant matter.
- 6. All complaints received will be logged and acknowledged. The subject member will usually be informed that a complaint has been received against him/her unless this will not be in the public interest or it would prejudice the future investigation of the complaint.
- 7. An assessment will be undertaken as to whether the complaint falls within the jurisdiction of the standards committee.
- 8. An assessment sub-committee meeting will be convened. This meeting will not be subject to the notice and publicity requirements under Part 5A of the Local government Act 1972 and will be held in private.

Initial tests

- 9. 9 (a) Upon receipt of a complaint, the monitoring officer will review it to ensure that the complaint is one that can be properly considered under the Local Filter Procedure. This process will take place before the assessment sub-committee's consideration of the initial tests.
- 10. In the first stage of the assessment of a complaint the assessment sub-committee will need to be satisfied that:
 - I. The complaint is against one or more named members of the council.
 - II. The named member was in office at the time of the alleged misconduct and Code of Conduct was in force at the time.
 - III. The complaint if proven will be a breach of the Code.
- 11. If the complaint fails to meet one or more of these tests, it cannot be investigated as a breach of the Code and the complainant will be informed that no further action will be taken in respect of the complaint.

Criteria for assessment

- 12. If the initial test is passed, the sub-committee will assess the complaint and decide what action, if any, to take against the following criteria. These are aimed at ensuring fairness to both the complainant and the subject member and are as follows:
 - I. Has the complainant submitted enough information to satisfy the assessment sub-committee that the complaint should be referred for investigation or other action?
 - If the answer is no, the complainant should be informed that there is insufficient information to enable an investigation to be carried out and that no further action will be taken unless or until further information is received within 5 WORKING DAYS from the date of postage
 - II. Is the complaint about someone who is no longer a member of the council but is a member of another authority? If so, does the assessment subcommittee wish to refer the complaint to the monitoring officer of that other authority?
 - If yes, refer the complaint to the monitoring officer of that other authority for consideration.
 - III. Has the complaint already been the subject of an investigation or other action relating to the Code of Conduct? Similarly, has the complaint been the subject of an investigation by other regulatory authorities?
 - If yes, there would be no point in taking further action in relation to the matter.
 - IV. Is the complaint about something that happened so long ago that there would be little benefit in taking action now?

- V. If yes, no further action.
- VI. Is the complaint not serious enough to warrant further action?

If yes, no further action will be taken on the complaint.

VII. Does the complaint appear to be simply malicious, politically motivated or tit-for-tat?

If yes and the allegation is not sufficiently serious, then no further action should be taken.

VIII. If the complaint is anonymous, does it include documentary or photographic evidence indicating an exceptionally serious matter?

If so, the matter should be referred for an investigation or some other action.

IX Is the complaint from the same complainant and the same or similar to one that has been previously judged as not having breached the code?

If yes, no further action

X. Is the complaint vexatious?

If yes, no further action.

N.B The assessment criteria can be reviewed and amended by <u>Standards</u> Committee from time to time as necessary but not during consideration of a matter.

Initial assessment decision

- 13. The assessment sub-committee should complete its initial assessment of a conduct allegation within an average of 20 WORKING DAYS from the receipt of the complaint.
- 14. The assessment sub-committee is required to reach one of the four following decisions:
 - I. Referral to the monitoring officer for an investigation.
 - II. Referral of the complaint to <u>Standards</u> Board for England.
 - III. No action should be taken in respect of the complaint.
 - IV. Referral to the monitoring officer for other action.

Referral to the monitoring officer for investigation

- 15. The assessment sub-committee may refer a complaint to the monitoring officer for investigation where it believes this is warranted according to the criteria set out at (numbered paragraphs).
- 16. The monitoring officer on receipt of the referral must write to the relevant parties informing them of the decision and, if practicable, advise who will be responsible for conducting the investigation.

Referral to Standards Board for England

- 17. Where there are difficult issues or public interest considerations, the subcommittee may refer the complaint to <u>Standards</u> Board for England for consideration.
- 18. The assessment sub-committee may take the following matters into consideration when making a referral to <u>Standards</u> <u>Board</u> for England:
 - I. Whether the status of the member or the number of members about whom the complaint is made would make it difficult for them to deal with the complaint. For example, is the member a group leader, a member of the executive or standards committee?
 - II. Whether the status of the complainant would make it difficult for the standards committee to deal with the complaint. For example is the complainant a group leader, a member of the executive, or standards committee, the chief executive, monitoring officer or other senior officer.
 - III. Whether there is a potential conflict of interest of so many of the members of the standards committee that it could not properly monitor the investigation.
 - IV. Whether the standards committee believes that there is a potential conflict of interest of the monitoring officer or other officers and that suitable alternative arrangement cannot be put in place to address the conflict.
 - V. Where the case is so serious or complex or involves so many members that it cannot be handled locally.
 - VI. Where the complaint requires substantial amounts of evidence that is not available from the authority's documents, its members or officers.
 - VII. Where there is substantial governance dysfunction within the council or its standards committee.
 - VIII. Where the complaint relates to a long term or systemic member/officer bullying which could be more effectively investigated by someone outside the authority.
 - IX. Where the complaint raises an unresolved legal issue on which a national ruling would be helpful.
 - X. Where the public might perceive the council to have an interest in the outcome of the case. For example, if the council could be liable to be judicially reviewed if it upheld the complaint.
 - XI. Where there are other exceptional circumstances which would prevent the standards committee investigating the complaint competently, fairly and in a reasonable period of time or within its available resources.

Decision to take no action.

19. The assessment sub-committee can decide that no action is required in respect of the complaint, for example, where the sub-committee does not consider the complaint to be serious enough to warrant any action or a long time has passed since the alleged conduct took place.

Referral to the monitoring officer for other action

- 20. When an assessment sub-committee considers a complaint, it can decide as an alternative to an investigation that some other course of action should be taken by the monitoring officer. The suitability of other action is dependant on the nature of the complaint and may be appropriate where the matter is less serious or is the most simple and cost effective way of resolving the matter. Examples of when this would be appropriate include where the authority to which the subject member belongs appears to have a poor understanding of the code and the authority's procedures. This may be evidenced by:
 - I. A number of members failing to comply with the same paragraph of the code.
 - II. Officers giving incorrect advice
 - III. Failure to adopt the code
 - IV. Inadequate or incomplete protocols for the use of the authority's resources.
- 21. Other action may also be appropriate where <u>a</u> breakdown in relationship within the authority is apparent. Evidence of this may include:
 - I. A pattern of allegations of disrespect, bullying or harassment.
 - II. Factionalised groupings within the authority.
 - III. A series of "tit-for-tat" allegations.
 - IV. Ongoing employment issues, which may include resolved or on-going employment tribunals, or grievance procedures.
 - 22. If the monitoring officer embarks on a course of other action, it should be emphasised to the parties concerned that no finding has been made on whether the subject member has failed to comply with the code.
 - 23. Complaints that have been referred to the monitoring officer for other action cannot be referred back to the standards committee if the other action is perceived to have failed. The decision to take other action closes the opportunity to investigate. The assessment sub-committee should communicate this clearly to the parties from the outset and may find it helpful to ask the parties to confirm in writing that they would be willing to co-operate with the process of other action.
 - 24. Examples of alternatives to investigations are:
 - Arranging for the subject member to attend a training course.
 - Arranging for the subject member and complainant to engage in a process of conciliation.
 - Arranging for the subject member to apologise to the complainant.
 - Instituting changes to the procedures of the authority if they have given rise to the complaint.
 - N.B The sub-committee **must** consult the monitoring officer before reaching a decision to take other action.

Notification of the decision

25. In any decision to take no action, the assessment criteria must be adhered to.

- 26. The assessment sub-committee should aim to send out its decision notice to the complainant and the subject member within 5 WORKING DAYS of the decision being made together with the reasons for the decision.
- 27. Where no potential breach of the code has been disclosed, the sub-committee must explain in the decision notice what the allegation was and the reasons for their decision.
- 28. If the decision is that no action should be taken, the sub-committee must advise the complainant of their right to request a review. This must be lodged within 30 DAYS from the date of receipt of the decision notice.
- 29. The review request must be in writing to the standards committee and set out the reasons for the request.
- 30. If the sub-committee decides that the complaint should be referred to the monitoring officer or Standards Beard for England, it must send a summary of the allegation to the relevant parties. The sub-committee does not have to give the subject member a summary of the complaint if it decides that doing so would be against the public interest or would prejudice any future investigation, for example, where the sub-committee considers that the subject member may intimidate the complainant or witnesses or compromise or destroy evidence.
- 31. The assessment sub-committee will need to seek advice from the monitoring officer when deciding whether or not the summary should be withheld.

Review of "no further action" decisions

- 32. Where the complainant exercises their right to a review of a no further action decision, the procedure detailed below will be followed:
 - a) The request for a review will be logged and acknowledged by the designated officer;
 - b) The designated officer will check that the request has been received within the statutory time limit of 30 DAYS. If not, the complainant will be informed and advised that it will not be considered.
 - c) If the request is received within the time limit, a review sub-committee will be convened to review the decision.
 - d) The allocation procedure will be used to allocate members to sub-committees Members of the assessment sub-committee who took part in the original decision must not take part in the review decision
 - d) The designated officer will notify all the relevant parties of the review request.
 - e) This review meeting will be held in private and not be subject to the notice and publicity requirements under Part 5A Local Government Act 1972.
 - f) It is a statutory requirement that the review sub-committee carries out the review within a maximum of three months of receiving the request. However the guidance recommends that the authority should aim to complete the review within an average of 20 WORKING DAYS.

- g) When carrying out the review, the review sub-committee should apply the same criteria used for the initial assessment which are set out in paragraph 11 above.
- h) The sub-committee has the same 4 decisions options available to it as the assessment committee. However, if new information of significance which is not merely a repeat of the complaint becomes available at the review state, the matter should be treated as a new complaint and referred back to the assessment committee.
- i) The complainant will be notified of the outcome of the review as soon as possible by the review sub-committee which should aim to do so within 5 WORKING DAYS of the decision.
- j) A committee clerk will record the decision of the review sub-committee.
- k) If the review sub-committee's decision is that no action should be taken on the complaint, it must give the complainant and the subject member notice in writing of both the decision and the reason(s) for the decision.
- If the decision is that the complaint should be referred to the monitoring officer or <u>Standards</u> Board for England, the review sub-committee must write to the relevant parties informing them of the decision and reasons for it together with a summary of the complaint.
- m) Where further information is made available in support of a complaint that changes its nature or gives rise to a potential new complaint, the review subcommittee should consider whether the case should be passed to the assessment sub-committee to be handled as a new complaint. In this instance the review sub-committee would still need to make a formal decision that the review request will not be granted.

NB: Any member who participated in the assessment stage of the complaint will not be eligible to sit on the review hearing of the same complaint.

How investigations will be conducted.

- 33. If the review sub-committee decides that the complaint should be investigated it will refer the matter to the monitoring officer who will arrange for the matter to be investigated.
- 34. The monitoring officer can delegate all or any of the monitoring officer functions to any person.
- 35. The monitoring officer may appoint an investigating officer who could be:-
 - A senior officer of the authority
 - An officer from another local authority with a reciprocal agreement with Southwark Council to undertake each others conduct investigations.
 - Any other senior person, who is not an elected or former member of this authority, with the relevant experience to conduct an investigation.
- 36. The monitoring officer shall inform the following persons below that the matter has been referred for investigation

- The member who is subject of the allegation.
- Any person who made the allegation that gave rise to the referral
- The standards committee of any other authority concerned
- 37. The investigating officer will give the subject member an opportunity to comment on the allegation.
- 38. The investigating officer can make enquires of any person and require any person to give such information including documentary evidence or explanation as he or she thinks necessary.
- 39. The investigating officer can require any other authority concerned to provide such advice and assistance as may reasonable be needed to assist in the investigation.
- 40. The investigating officer will prepare a report, including their findings. The Standard <u>for England's</u> Guidance recommends that most investigations are carried out and a report produced within 6 months of the complaint being initially assessed.

The report

- 41. The report should show appropriate input from relevant persons and clearly state whether the investigating officer considers that there has been a breach of the code and which obligations of the Code has been breached.
- 42. The Investigating officer may require any of the authorities concerned to afford reasonable access to such documents in the possession of that authority as appear to the investigation officer to be necessary for the purpose of conducting the investigation.
- 43. The investigating officer will send a copy of the report to the member who was the subject of the allegation and refer the report to the hearing sub-committee

Consideration hearing

- 44. A consideration sub-committee meeting should be convened to consider the investigating officer's report. This meeting will not be subject to the notice and publicity requirements under Part 5A of the Local Government Act 1972 and will be held in private.
- 45. The consideration sub-committee must consider the investigating officer's report and make one of the following findings:
 - <u>that it accepts the monitoring officer's findings that there has been no</u> failure to comply with an authority's code of conduct;
 - that the matter should be considered at a hearing sub-committee; or
 - <u>that the matter should be referred to the Adjudication Panel for</u> England for determination.

NB: The consideration sub-committee may only refer to the Adjudication Panel for England for determination if it considers the powers of sanction insufficient and the Adjudication Panel for England has agreed to accept it.

- 43. Where the investigating officer does not consider that there has been a breach of the code the report will be referred to the standards committee to make a decision as to whether it agrees with the investigating officers findings. If the standards committee decides that there has been a breach of the code, the matter will be referred to the hearing sub-committee for a hearing.
- 46. If the <u>consideration sub-committee</u> agrees that the code has not been breached <u>and providing the subject member agrees</u>, it must arrange for a notice to be published in the local newspaper and may also arrange for the notice to be published on the council's website. providing the subject member agrees.

The hearing sub-committee

- 47. The hearing sub-committee, which will generally have the same members as the consideration sub-committee, will decide, on a balance of probabilities, whether the complaint(s) is or are upheld. It will do so by considering the investigating officer's report and any representations by him/her representative and the written or oral representations made by the subject member, any evidence given and any other relevant issues.
- 48. The hearing sub-committee meeting will be open to the public and the press. However, the public and press will be excluded for those parts of the meeting where confidential or exempt information under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended is disclosed.
- 49. The hearing must be heard within three months of the date on which the monitoring officer's report is completed but not less than 14 DAYS after the monitoring officer sends the report to the subject member.
- 50. The subject member may choose to present evidence and make representations either orally, or in writing and either personally or by counsel or solicitor or with the consent of the standards committee by any other representative.

Procedure at the Hearing

- 51. The initial order of business at the meeting will be as follows:
 - establishing whether the hearing sub-committee is quorate, (the quorum for the committee will be **three**. An independent member and a two members from different political groups must be present; no substitutions will be allowed once proceedings have commenced);

NB: Any member who participated in the review stage of the complaint will not be eligible to sit on the hearing of the same complaint.

- introductions;
- the chair will explain how the hearing will be conducted;
- ❖ If a member having given notice of attendance fails to attend the hearing, the hearing committee may make a determination in their absence if satisfied that there is insufficient reason for such failure or adjourn to another date where there is sufficient reason to warrant an adjournment

consideration of any procedural issues and, in particular, any representations from the monitoring officer and/or the subject member as to reasons why the sub-committee should exclude the press and public for any part of the meeting and determination as to whether to exclude the press and public.

Presentation by the investigating officer

- 52. The investigating officer will present the evidence which is relevant to the matter and may call any witnesses, including the complainant to substantiate any matter(s) contained in the report.
- 53. The subject member or his/her representative may ask questions of the investigating officer and of any witnesses.
- 54. The sub-committee may ask questions of the investigating officer and of any witnesses.

Presentation by the subject member

- 55. The subject member or his/her representative will then have the opportunity to make representations and to present the evidence which is relevant to the matter. The subject member or his/her representative may call any other witnesses to give evidence.
- The investigating officer may ask questions of the subject member and of any witnesses.
- 57. The committee may ask questions of the subject member or any witness.
- 58. The investigating officer will be given the opportunity to sum up and comment on the most appropriate sanction.
- The subject member or his/her representative will be given the opportunity to sum up, comment on the most appropriate sanction and put forward any mitigating circumstances.

Decision by the hearing sub-committee

- 60. The decision of the hearing sub-committee will be made in accordance with the following procedure:
 - The hearing sub-committee will adjourn to consider in private all the
 evidence and decision. The hearing sub-committee's legal adviser (who
 will be a different legal officer from the investigating officer) and
 committee clerk will retire with them to provide legal advice or advice
 regarding the evidence/submissions.
 - At any stage in the consideration of the matter the hearing subcommittee may return to ask further questions of the investigating officer or subject member or seek further information.
- Where the hearing sub-committee finds the subject member to be in breach of the Code, the possible sanctions or a combination of available to it are as follows:
 - a) censure of that member;

- b) restriction for a period not exceeding six months of that member's access to the premises of the authority or that member's use of the resources of the authority provided that those restrictions
 - I. are reasonable and proportionate to the nature of the breach; and
 - II. do not unduly restrict the person's ability to perform the functions of a member
- c) partial suspension of that member for a period not exceeding six months; or
- d) suspension of that member for a period not exceeding six months;
- e) that the member submits a written apology in a form specified by the hearing sub-committee;
- f) that the member undertakes such training as the standard committee specifies;
- g) that the member participate in such conciliation as the standards committee specifies;
- h) partial suspension of the member for a period not exceeding six months or until such time as the member submits a written apology in the form specified by the standards committee;
- i) partial suspension of a member for a period not exceeding six months or until such time as the member has undertaken such training or has participated in such conciliation as the standards committee specifies;
- suspension of member the for a period not exceeding six months or until such time as the member has submitted a written apology in a form specified by the standards committee;
- k) suspension of a member for a period not exceeding six months or until such time as the member has undertaken such training or has participated in such conciliation as the standards committee specifies;
- 62. The decision of the hearing sub- committee, the action (if any) it is proposes to take and the reasons for the decision will be given as soon as practicable after the end of the hearing.
- 63. The hearing sub-committee will consider whether there are any recommendations which should be made arising from the consideration of the allegation.

Notification of findings

- 64. The full written decision together with reasons must be given to the following:
 - I. to the subject member
 - II. Standards Board for England
 - III. Standards committee of any other authority concerned
 - IV. the complainant

- 65. The committee clerk will arrange for a summary of the <u>findings</u> <u>full written</u> <u>decision</u> to be published on the council's website and in at least one local newspaper.
- 66. Where the hearing sub-committee determines that there has not been a breach of the Code of Conduct, providing the subject member agrees, the summary notice will state that the committee found that the subject member had not failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and will give its reasons for reaching that finding;
- 67. Where the hearing sub-committee determines that there has been a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct but no action is required, the summary will:
 - (i) state that the hearing sub- committee found that the subject member had failed to comply with the Code of Conduct but that no action needs to be taken in respect of that failure;
 - (ii) specify the details of the failure;
 - (iii) give reasons for the decision reached; and
 - (iv) state that the member concerned may apply to the president of the Adjudication Panel for England for permission to appeal against the determination.
- 68. Where the committee determines that there has been a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct and that a sanction should be imposed, the <u>summary</u> will:
 - (i) state that the panel found that the Member had failed to comply with the Code of Conduct:
 - (ii) specify the details of the failure;
 - (iii) give reasons for the decision reached;
 - (iv) specify the sanction imposed, and
 - (v) state that the Member concerned may apply to the President of the Adjudication Panel for England for permission to appeal against the determination.

Appeal

- 69. Where the hearing committee determines that the subject member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Chair will inform the subject member of his/her right to apply to the president of the Adjudication Panel for England for permission to appeal the decision and for any sanction imposed to be suspended until the appeal is determined. within 21 days of receiving the decision notice
- 70. The application for leave to appeal must lodged within 21 DAYS of receipt of the decision notice and must be addressed to:

The President of the Adjudication Panel

Tribunal Service
York House
31-36 York Place
Leeds
West Yorkshire
LS1 2ED

Other issues for consideration

Withdrawing the complaint

- 71. Where a complainant asks to withdraw their complaint prior to the assessment sub-committee having made a decision on it the assessment sub-committee will need to consider whether to grant the request.
- 72. The following criteria may apply:
 - Does the public interest in taking some action on the complaint outweigh the complaints desire to withdraw it?
 - Is the complaint such that action can be taken on it. For example an investigation without the complainants participation?
 - Is there an underlying reason for the withdrawal of the complaint?

 For example, is there information to suggest that the complainant may have been pressured by the subject member or an associate of theirs to withdraw the complaint.

Multiple and vexatious complaints

Multiple complaints

- 73. Where a number of complaints from different complainants about the same matter are received the assessment sub-committee may consider the complaints at the same meeting.
- 74. If this is the case, an officer should be asked to present one report and recommendation that draws together all the relevant information highlighting any differences or contradictions. It should be noted however, that the assessment sub-committee must reach a separate decision for each complaint and follow the notification procedure on each one.

Vexatious complaints

- 75. The standards committee must consider every complaint that they receive in relation to the Code of Conduct on its own merits. However, if the complaint is vexatious it will not be considered.
- 76. Vexatious and persistent complaints may be identified through the following patterns of behaviour:
 - repeated complaints making the same or broadly similar, complaints against the same member/s about the same alleged incident.
 - use or aggressive or repetitive language of an obsessive nature.
 - repeated complaints that disclose no potential breach of the Code.
 - where there seems to be an ulterior motive for the complaint/s.
 - where a complainant refuses to let the matter rest once the complaint process has been exhausted (including the review stage)

Confidentiality

- 77. Where a complainant wishes their identity to be withheld, the assessment sub committee can decide to do so. In reaching that decision it will need to have regard to the following:
 - whether there is a risk of physical harm to the complainant if their identity is disclosed
 - where the complainant works closely with the subject member and afraid of the consequences to their employment
 - where the complainant suffers a serious health condition and there is a medical risk associate with the disclosure of their identity. In such cases the committee may wish to obtain medical evidence in respect of his.

Complaints about members of more than authority.

- 78. If a complaint is made about a dual-hatted member the monitoring officer should check whether a similar allegation has been made to the other authority on which the member serves and a decision on which standard committee should deal with the particular matter must be taken by the standard committees themselves following discussions.
- 79. They may take advice as necessary from **Standards** Board for England.

STANDARDS COMMITTEE - YEAR 2009-10 DISTRIBUTION LIST - OPEN

NOTE: Original held in Constitutional Team. All amendments to Andrew Weir on Telephone Number: -020 7525 4326

OPEN

Councillors - 1 copy each

James Barber
Paul Bates
Dora Dixon-Fyle
Michelle Holford
David Hubber
Mackie Sheik
Robert Smeath

Reserves - 1 copy each

Mark Glover Peter John Linda Manchester Chris Page Caroline Pidgeon Lewis Robinson

Independent Voting Members - 1 copy each

Peter Bibby Wendy Golding Christopher Gurney Bola Ogun Mark Roelofson

Political Assistants - 1 copy each

Dan Falchicov, Lib Dem. Political Assistant John Bibby, Labour Political Assistant

Libraries - 1 copy each

Albion / Dulwich / Newington / Local Studies Library

Press

South London Press Southwark News

Members of Parliament/Greater London Assembly - 1 copy each

Tessa Jowell MP House of Commons SW1 0AA

Simon Hughes MP House of Commons SW1 0AA

Valerie Shawcross Greater London Authority City Hall, Queen's Walk London SE1 2AA

Officers

Deborah Collins Graham Love Norman Coombe Constitutional Team (12 copies)

Trade unions – 1 copy each

Euan Cameron, UNISON Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX office Mick Young, TGWU/ACTS Tony O'Brien, UCATT

Other

Shahida Nasim, Audit Commission, Second floor, Central House

Total Print Run: 45

Last updated: June 21 2009